
Notice & Agenda 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, June 18, 2019 

5:00 PM 

LEC Meeting Room – 301 14th St N, Benson, MN 

 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 
 

        Time     Reference                                      Item                                             

 5:00 p.m.  Call to Order and Roll Call  

   5:01 p.m.                     Approve Agenda 

  5:03 p.m.  Consent Agenda  

  1-2  (1)  Minutes from the June 4, 2019 Regular Meeting 

  3-4  (2) Consider approving Joan Fust to the HRA Board of 

Commissioners to complete Lindsey Bruer’s term)  

   

 5:04 p.m.  Consider Approval of Commissioner warrants and review  

   Auditor warrants reviewed 

 5:05 p.m.  Commissioner and Board reports  

 5:20 p.m.  County Administrator report 

 5:25 p.m.  Citizens Comments 

    

 5:40 p.m.   KMS Trail Group  

 5-6  Consider a Letter of Support of a proposed recreational trail 

connecting the towns of Murdock and Kerkhoven MN. 

 

 5:50 p.m.  Jennifer Frost, RDA Executive Director & Vicki Syverson, HRA 

Executive Director 

 7-9  Consider authorizing interim funding to the HRA from County 

reserves in an amount not to exceed $410,000 for the time period 

of 2020-2021(two years).  This authorization will be contingent 

on the HRA being awarded a 2019 Affordable Housing Program 

grant through Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). 

 

 6:00 p.m.  Catie Lee, Human Services 

  10-11  Monthly update   

     

 6:10 p.m.  Other Business 

     

  6:15 p.m.  Assessor Wayne Knutson     

  12-28  Assessor Office Updates  

 
 7:00 p.m.  Adjournment  

 

 

Note:     Swift County Board of Assessment and Equalization will meet immediately after the 

adjournment of the Swift County Board of Commissioners meeting.   



SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

June 04, 2019 
 

Chairman Hendrickx called the meeting to order at 9:01 AM with all members present with the exception 

of Commissioner Rudningen. Also present: County Administrator Kelsey Baker, Terri Orr, other county 

employees and members of the public. 

 

Chairman Hendrickx asked if there were any changes or additions to the agenda. Chairman Hendrickx 

added a Chippewa River Watershed invoice to be discussed prior to warrants. There were no other 

changes or additions requested. 

 

06-04-19-01 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to approve the agenda as 

amended. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

06-04-19-02 Commissioner E. Pederson moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the Consent 

Agenda: (1) Minutes from the May 21, 2019 Regular Meeting, (2) Approval of tobacco licenses for the 

following businesses: Holloway Hideout, Dollar General # 17229 and Dooley’s Petroleum dba Handi-

Stop of Kerkhoven. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Rudningen joined the board meeting at 9:03 AM. 

 

Commissioner Fox updated the board on the Chippewa Watershed District invoice. Motion to consider 

approving the Chippewa Watershed District invoice of $24,414.11.   

 

06-04-19-03 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve the Chippewa 

Watershed District invoice of $24,414.11, half from AIS and half from the Board Discretionary fund. A 

brief discussion was held. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

06-04-19-04 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve the 

Commissioner warrants as amended: Revenue, $41,341.41; Solid Waste, $21,323.26; Road and Bridge, 

$220,889.03; County Ditches Fund, $2,909.05; Upper Minnesota Watershed, $7,630.24; Region 6 West 

Agency, $44,158.17; Townships & Cities Agency, $3,368,020.12; Rural Development Agency Fund, 

$65,096.99; which includes the following bills over $2,000: Chippewa Watershed District, $24,414.11; 

Dooley Petroleum Inc., $3,313.25; Geyer Recycling, $6,099.33; Kandiyohi County, $2,000.00; RDO 

Equipment Co, $211,823.00; Swift County HRA, $133,548.61; Swift County RDA, $65,096.99; 

Treasurer, Appleton Township, $32,869.42; Treasure, Benson Township, $36,858.79; Treasurer, Camp 

Lake Township, $51,069.99; Treasurer, Cashel Township, $45,716.38; Treasurer, City of Appleton, 

$886,501.63; Treasurer, City of Benson, $1,003,641.78; Treasurer, City of Clontarf, $52,076.39; 

Treasurer, City of Danvers, $40,470.52; Treasurer, City of DeGraff, $10,939.19; Treasurer, City of 

Holloway, $96,118.84; Treasurer, City of Kerkhoven, $176,009.72; Treasurer, City of Murdock, 

$72,009.24; Treasurer, Clontarf Township, $40,853.01; Treasurer, Dublin Township, $54,911.87; 

Treasurer, Edison Township, $34,962.97; Treasurer, Fairfield Township, $27,553.64; Treasurer, Hayes 

Township, $36,780.43; Treasure, Hegbert Township, $36,878.07; Treasurer, Kerkhoven Township, 

$39,919.51; Treasurer, Kildare Township, $49,790.72; Treasurer, Marysland Township, $35,190.22; 

Treasurer, Moyer Township, $34,415.73; Treasurer, Pillsbury Township, $52,879.31; Treasurer, Shible 

Township, $25,350.34; Treasurer, Six Mile Grove Township, $31,679.89; Treasure, Swenoda Township, 

$59,521.23; Treasurer, Tara Township, $44,113.87; Treasurer, Torning Township, $60,875.56; Treasurer, 

West Bank Township, $64,741.17; Upper Minnesota River Watershed District, $7,630.24; Upper 

Minnesota Valley RDC, $44,158.17; Waste Management of Northern Minnesota, $13,650.02; Wildlife 

Forever, $3,000.00. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Board and Committee Reports were given as follows: Commissioner P. Peterson reported on Countryside 

Public Health, Drainage issue in Six Mile Grove Township, City of DeGraff on Tax forfeiture house and 

Local newspaper costs. Commissioner E. Pederson reported on Historical Society, Soil and Water 

Conservation District and DAC meeting. Commissioner Hendrickx reported on Southern Prairie 

Community Care, RDC, AMC Bridging Divides and Human Service Committee. Commissioner Fox 

reported on Hospital meeting. Commissioner Rudningen reported on Technology meeting. 

 

Administrator Baker reported on the Soft Annual reviews, Summer help, Introduction of the 4-H interns, 

Swift County Buffer meeting, Technology meeting, 2020 Budget, Grow building and the Community 

Perspective Committee meeting. 

  

Chairman Hendrickx asked for citizen’s comments. Mark Hughes wants to see financial support to the 

local papers and was concerned about the security in the public schools. There were no other citizen’s 

comments. 

1



 

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins presented for approval the Environmental Services 2018 

MPCA County Feedlot Officer (CFO) Annual Report. 

 

06-04-19-05 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve the 

Environmental Services 2018 MPCA County Feedlot Officer (CFO) Annual Report. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins presented for approval of a Conditional Use Permit #5605 

requested by Marie Commerford for aggregate processing. 

 

06-04-19-06 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve the 

Conditional Use Permit #5605 requested by Marie Commerford for aggregate processing. A brief 

discussion was held. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Parks, Drainage & Wetlands Supervisor Mike Johnson held a discussion and addressed the issue to fix the 

tile and get to the bottom of the underlying issues to correct the situation on Lateral E of JD #19. Dave 

Fremling, Randy Brandt and Carla Roberts voiced their concerns with this issue.  

 

Administrator Kelsey Baker requested approval of the appointment for a County Assessor at the 3-year 

step and additional week of PTO. 

 

06-04-19-07 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to approve the 

appointment of a County Assessor at the 3-year step and additional week of PTO. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

06-04-19-08 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to adjourn. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:25 AM.  

  

 

 

WITNESSED:  

 

       _____________________________ 

       Gary Hendrickx, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

2



Agenda  Item Details 

 

 

 
Department  Information 

Request for Board Action 
 
 

Commissioner's Report 

 
 

 
BOARD MEETING DATE : 

June 18, 2019 

 

ORIGINATING  DEPARTMENT: 

HRA 

REQUESTOR:  

Victoria Syverson 

REQUESTOR PHONE: 

320-843-4676 

 
 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: Appoint Joan Fust to the HRA Board of Commissioners to complete 

Lindsey Bruer's term. 

AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: 

Consent Agenda 

ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

No 

IS THIS MANDATED? 

No 

EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION : Lindsey Bruer is moving out of Swift County. We need to fill her spot on the HRA 

Board. Joan Fust lives in Appleton; she owns a business and serves on the Appleton EDA Board. 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / 

OTHER PARTIES INVOLVED? 
 

Budget Information 
 

 

J        FUNDING: n/a 
 

Review/Recommendation 
 

COUNTY  ATIORNEY: 

Danielle Olson 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 

Kelsey Baker 

RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS  : 

COMMENTS: 

None 

COMMENTS: 

None 

Board Action 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Motions 

J Fox G Hendrickx E Pederson P Peterson _ E Rudningen 

Action I Vote 

3



4



 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

301 14th St North  

Benson MN 56215 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioners: 

 

We are writing to you as the KMS Trail Group.  Our group has been working toward the eventual 

construction of a non-motorized recreational trail connecting the towns of Murdock and Kerkhoven.   

 

We feel that such a trail would greatly improve this area as well as our county as a whole.  Since the 

elementary and high school are divided by these towns we feel that an extra opportunity and benefit 

would be provided by a trail that created a safe and enjoyable option for commuting between the two.  

Many school and community activities take place in both towns adding further benefit. 

 

We are currently applying for a National Parks Service technical assistance grant.  In order to strengthen 

this grant request, we are asking the Swift County Board for a letter of support specific to this trail 

project. 

 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

KMS Trail Group 

David Barrett, Terri Barrett, Janet Demuth, Naomi Lindquist, Alison Nelson 

 

 

 

5



 

Swift County 
Board of Commissioners 

     

 
301 14th St N 

P.O. Box 207 
Benson, MN  56215 

www.swiftcounty.com 

    

 
Gary Hendrickx - District 1 
Edward Pederson - District 2 
Pete Peterson - District 3 
Joe Fox - District 4 
Eric Rudningen - District 5 

     

 
June 18, 2019 
 
David Thomson 
National Park Service Midwest Region Program Manager 
U.S. Department of the Interior Rivers 
Trails & Conservation Assistance Program 
 
 
Dear Mr. Thomson,  
 
 
The Swift County Board of Commissioners offers its support of a proposed recreational 
trail connecting the towns of Murdock and Kerkhoven MN.   
 
The communities of Murdock and Kerkhoven are located on the Eastern side of Swift 
County and are home to approximately 1000 residents.  The elementary and high schools 
are separated by these towns and a trail would effectively connect them other than by 
roadway.    
 
The County Board understands the positive impacts that a community trail can provide, 
and therefore supports this initiative.   
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gary Hendrickx 
Swift County Chairman 
 

6



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
6/18/19 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

RDA & HRA Jennifer Frost/Vicki Syverson 320-842-4769 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Authorize interim funding to the HRA from County reserves in an amount not to exceed $410,000 for 
the time period of 2020-2021 (two years). This authorization will be contingent on the HRA being 
awarded a 2019 Affordable Housing Program grant through Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB).   
 
If successful, the grant will award $479,000 to be used to assist eligible applicants with deferred loan 
funds to rehabilitate 20 owner-occupied, single family homes.  This program will be operated similar 
to Small Cities Rehab Programs, the difference – and the need for interim county funding – lies in the 
fact that with the FHLB program, grant funds are provided as a reimbursement, and paid to the HRA 
as each home is cleared for occupancy or the scope of work of approved repairs is certified as 
complete.  Due to timing of projects and HRA internal financial reserve resources, it is unlikely the 
HRA will need to draw into more than $100,000 of County interim funds, however, the application 
requires us to demonstrate we have access to 100% of required funds.  This results in the request for 
$410,000 from County reserves, which we called “Swift County Housing Fund 2021”.  2021 is when 
the interim use of funds would cease and any outstanding amounts returned in full. 
 
As noted above this program will augment neighborhood specific home rehab programs offered with 
Small Cities Development Program funds, but will be offered *county-wide* and not be restricted to 
city limits or certain neighborhoods.  Like the Small Cities programs, this program will require a 
homeowner match and applicants must be at 80% of median income or less to be eligible.  Unlike the 
Small Cities Programs, this one will target “Special Needs” households for 50% of the projects. Special 
needs as defined by FHLB includes homes with family members that are elderly or have a physical or 
mental disability, among others.  As of June 13th, HRA has 15 people on the waiting list for this 
program and are very hopeful we will be successful in winning FHLB funding. 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Board 6/18/19 No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

No Click here to enter text. 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Swift County 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Grant application submitted by RDA, May 
28, 2019 to FHLB.  Application approved by 
local member bank, Financial Security Bank 
of Kerkhoven, May 29, 2019 

 

7



Budget Information 

FUNDING: See attached Sources and Uses 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

Click here to enter text.    
 

Board Action 

Motions 
___ J Fox     ___ G Hendrickx     ___ E Pederson     ___ P Peterson      ___ E Rudningen  
Action Vote 
  

 

8



Project Name: 

     1. AHP Subsidy 9. State Low Income Housing Tax Credit Equity

     2. Permanent Financing 10. State Housing Loans

     3. FHA Insured Mortgage 11. State Government Subsidy 18. Owner’s Equity

     4. Federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Equity 12. Community Development Block Grants 19. Deferred Developer Fee

     5. Other Federal Housing Program 13. TIF/Local Government Subsidy

     6. McKinney/Hearth Act 14. Housing Bonds

     7. Historic Preservation Tax Credit Equity 15. Grants

     8. HOME 16. Other Loans

Permanent Sources Do not cut and paste or enter formulas in the table below.
A B C D E F G H

Amort
Descr Status Period Must Pay?

Code Code (years) (Y/N)

1  $                         -   2 Committed Y

2 Owners Equity  $          140,000.00 18 Committed

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14  AHP Direct Subsidy  $          479,000.00 1 Requested

Total Funding Sources  $          619,000.00 

Phone Number

Interim Sources        Do not cut and paste or enter formulas in the table below.
A B C D E F G

Descr Status Must Pay?

Code Code (Y/N)

Swift County HRA Fund  $          197,000.00 16 Committed 0.000% 10.0 Y

Swift County Housing Fund 2021  $          410,000.00 16 Requested 0.000% 5.0 Y

HRA Loan Fund  $            12,000.00 13 Committed 0.000% 5.0 N

Total Interim Sources  $          619,000.00 

Phone Number

(320) 314-8399

17. Charitable Donation 

Swift County Housing Fund 2021 6/21/2019

Description Code

List all Permanent Sources of Project Funding, using one description code per line.  Also,  Fill out columns A thru D for each funding 
source and columns E thru H for all debt, including forgivable loans.  

Contact NameFunding Source

List all cash  sources of funds in the project, including permanent financing, grants, donations, etc.  The first table 
should include all permanent sources.  Construction and other interim financing should be listed in the Interim 
Financing table below.  In the "Description Code" column, use the description codes below.  If a project includes a 
commercial component include only housing costs in this form.  Contact the Community Investment Department to 
coordinate delivery of a budget for any commercial component.

Funding Source Decision Due Date Contact Name

For all uncommitted funds listed above, list the date of financing decision, contact name and phone number .

Term 
(years)

Source of Funds Amount Rate (%)

Sources of Funds

For all uncommitted funds listed above, list the date of financing decision, contact name, and phone number.

Source of Funds Amount Rate (%) Term 
(years)

Swift Home Improvement Program

Decision Due Date

Kelsey Baker

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Sources: Page 1 of 1

9



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL

ACCOUNTS

MONTH ENDING MAY 31

2019

HUMAN SERVICES

Receipts  

Beginning Balance $2,030,159.47

Current Month Receipts  $777,460.03

Tax Settlement  $0.00

Investments  $200,000.00

Interest on Investments $6,672.27

 

Total Receipts $3,014,291.77

Disbursements

Current Month Disbursements $429,151.52

Investments $200,000.00

Total Disbursements $629,151.52

Ending Fund Balance $2,385,140.25

ENDING FUND BALANCE SUMMARY:

2018 2019

Checking Balance $76,328.97 $777,140.25

Investments $1,203,000.00 $1,608,000.00

  

Ending Cash Balance $1,279,328.97 $2,385,140.25

INVESTMENT REPORT

BANK TYPE OF ACCOUNT MAT. DATE INT. RATE AMOUNT

CO-OP Credit Union Money Market Account  0.90% 73,000.00$      

Washington TR CO 9 Month CD 05/29/19 2.15% 200,000.00$    

Mizrahi Tefahot Bank 6 Month CD 06/27/19 2.45% 245,000.00$    

Quontic Bank 18 Month CD 06/28/19 1.85% 200,000.00$    

Customers Bank 11 Month CD 07/24/19 2.25% 200,000.00$    

Academy Bank 1 Year CD 08/08/19 2.30% 200,000.00$    

Bank of China 1 Year CD 12/27/19 2.75% 240,000.00$    

MAGIC Fund 1 Yr CD 01/22/20 3.00% 50,000.00$      

NY Community Bank 1 Yr CD 02/28/20 2.45% 200,000.00$    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 1,608,000.00$ 

10



Swift County Human Services

Ending Monthly Cash & Investment Balances

2010 - 2019

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Average

Jan 1,116,112$     1,027,808$        977,091$        909,780$        846,281$         983,278$        933,563$       1,668,733$    2,045,847$         2,559,803$         $1,306,830

Feb 1,069,918$     1,004,522$        829,326$        788,543$        739,793$         882,373$        886,577$       1,562,756$    1,967,692$         2,603,360$         $1,233,486

Mar 810,381$        848,432$           551,477$        576,608$        601,437$         593,206$        636,635$       1,278,985$    1,706,416$         2,416,328$         $1,001,991

Apr 732,868$        820,387$           328,272$        451,920$        446,379$         168,803$        352,306$       1,085,797$    1,415,224$         2,030,159$         $783,212

May 576,849$        669,878$           329,407$        300,099$        269,118$         187,841$        289,965$       804,645$       1,279,329$         2,385,140$         $709,227

Jun 1,244,642$     1,460,435$        1,218,863$     1,145,907$     1,361,018$      1,187,485$     1,476,200$    2,165,333$    2,745,303$         $1,556,132

Jul 1,349,636$     1,142,375$        1,113,725$     1,094,712$     1,165,952$      1,217,022$     1,483,669$    2,160,790$    2,842,236$         $1,507,791

Aug 1,237,374$     1,228,978$        894,462$        982,736$        1,199,826$      1,126,524$     1,532,984$    1,995,009$    2,661,662$         $1,428,839

Sep 1,085,187$     1,079,263$        804,086$        714,174$        921,407$         877,167$        1,220,833$    1,650,293$    2,409,864$         $1,195,808

Oct 878,408$        773,615$           538,645$        627,339$        667,331$         646,265$        1,028,981$    1,459,114$    2,139,152$         $973,206

Nov 826,623$        741,489$           483,013$        377,803$        477,198$         513,740$        2,056,684$    2,511,571$    3,278,552$         $1,251,853

Dec 1,279,178$     1,242,733$        1,094,736$     1,057,825$     1,180,113$      1,187,268$     1,888,413$    2,296,240$    3,077,192$          $1,589,300

Average 1,017,265$     1,003,326$        763,592$        752,287$        822,988$         797,581$        1,148,901$    1,719,939$    2,297,372$         2,398,958$         

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000
$1,800,000

Average Monthly Cash & Investment Balance
2010-2019

11



Notice & Agenda 
 

2019 
 

Swift County Board of Assessment and Equalization 
 

Tuesday, June 18, 2019 

Starting after the adjournment of the regular Swift County Board of Commissioner 

Meeting and will run until at least 7:00 PM 

 

LEC Meeting Room – 301 14th St N, Benson, MN 

 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 

 

 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

 

1. Correction of values 

 

 

2. Updates 

 

 

3. Adjournment 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28


	01 06-04-19 draft
	02 HRA appoint Joan Fust to their board
	04 Trail board request
	04a Trail Letter of support
	05 Request for Board Action - FHLB
	05a Sources-Uses FHLB County Request
	06 0519 Fiscal Summary
	0519 Fiscal Summary
	Sheet1

	2019 Yearly Comparison
	Sheet1


	07 2019 Agenda -Board of Assessment
	08 2019 County Board of Appeal and Equalization



